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Federal M ne Safety and Health Review Commi ssion (FMS. HRC)
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR Cvil Penalty Proceedi ngs
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. VINC 79-138-PM
PETI TI ONER A. O No. 11-01603- 05002
V.
MM #6 M ne

OZARK MAHONI NG COVPANY,
RESPONDENT Docket No. VINC 79-173-PM
A.O. No. 11-01599-05001
Barnett M ne
DECI SI ON

Appear ances: Mguel J. Carnmpna, Esq., and WIIiam Post er nack,
Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor, U'S. Departnment of Labor,

Chicago, Illinois, for Petitioner
M L. Hahn and Victor Evans, Qrzark Mahoni ng Conpany,
Rosiclare, Illinois, for Respondent

Before: Judge Stewart
FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

The above-captioned cases are civil penalty proceedings
br ought pursuant to section 110 of the Federal M ne Safety and
Heal th Act of 1977 (hereinafter, the Act), 30 U S.C [820(a)
(1978). The hearing in these matters was held on August 21
1979, in Evansville, Indiana. Petitioner called two w tnesses
and introduced five exhibits. Respondent introduced nine
exhi bits.

FI NDI NGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW
The parties offered the followi ng stipulations:

The size of the operating conmpany was 454, 636 man- hours
per year.

The size of the MM #6 M ne was 44, 000 man- hours per
year.

The size of the Barnett M ne was 36,373 nan-hours per
year.
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Both m nes are consi dered snal |

Respondent has a | ow nunber of past violations at both
the MM #6 and the Barnett M nes.

There is no indication on the record that the ability of the
Respondent to remain in business would be adversely affected by
any civil penalty ordered herein.

Docket No. VINC 79-138-PM

A single violation was all eged under this docket numnber.
Citation No. 366255 was issued at the operator's MM #6 M ne by
i nspector Jack Lester on July 11, 1978. The inspector cited a
violation of 30 CFR 57.9-71 (Footnote 1) and described the condition or
practice at issue as follows: "Traffic rules including speed,
signal s and warni ng signs were not standardi zed and posted at the
m ne." The operator denonstrated a nornmal degree of good faith
by correcting the condition within the tine set by the inspector
for abatenent.

Section 57.9-71 requires that traffic rules be posted.
Petitioner established that the operator had not posted a traffic
sign at a point where vehicles exited nine property onto a
country road. The failure to post either a yield or stop sign
was in violation of section 57.9-71.

The operator was negligent in its failure to post a traffic
sign. The absence of such a sign was visually obvious and shoul d
have been known to Respondent.

It was probable that an accident woul d occur because of this
violation. The inspector testified that the visibility of
drivers exiting the mne and that of drivers on the country road
was partially restricted by a pile of rock. As the inspector
turned onto mne property, he nmet a coal haul age truck and a
hazardous conditi on devel oped as it entered onto the country
road. At |east one haul age truck used the road each hour in
exiting the m ne property.

Docket No. VINC 79-173-PM

The four violations included under this docket nunber were
al l eged by inspector Jack Lester to have occurred at Respondent's
Barnett M ne. In each instance, the inspector issued a section
104(a) citation.
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Citation No. 00366218 was issued on April 20, 1978. The

i nspector cited a violation of 30 CFR 57.12-82 and descri bed the
pertinent condition or practice as follows: "El ectrical power
lines were noted in contact with water lines at the punp station
on 800 level of the mne." The operator denonstrated a nornal
degree of good faith by correcting the condition within the tine
set by the inspector for abatenent.

Section 57.12-82 requires that power lines shall be well
separated or insulated fromwaterlines. The inspector observed
an energi zed 480-volt power cable crossing over, and in contact
with, a 4-inch alum num water pipe. The outer jacket of the
cabl e was conprised of neoprene and rubber insulation. This
cable insulation did not fulfill the requirenment that the power
line be well separated or insulated fromthe waterline. The
cable was in contact with the waterline and this condition was in
viol ation of section 57.12-82. Any physical danage done to the
i nsul ati on of the power cable could have caused energi zati on of
the waterline. Such physical danmage coul d have been caused by a
rock fall, the vibration of the pipelines, or a blowout of the
cable itself.

The operator was not negligent inits failure to conply with
section 57.12-82. The cable was in good condition. The
i nspector did not observe splices in it or breaks in the
i nsulation and the |ine was equipped with a ground fault
i ndi cator system The operator may have reasonably believed that
the cable was sufficiently insulated to neet the requirenents of
the mandatory standard. The inspector concluded that the
operator was negligent because this type of violation had
occurred at the mne on prior occasions. The evidence of record,
however, did not establish that the operator knew or shoul d have
known of this particular condition

It was probable that an accident woul d occur because of this
condition. Any damage done to the cable could have energi zed the
entire length of the waterline. If a person were to contact the
energi zed pipeline, that person mght suffer electrocution
severe burning, or shock

Citation No. 00366228 was issued on May 19, 1978. The
i nspector cited a violation of 30 CFR 57.12-82 and descri bed the

rel evant condition or practice as follows: "Powerlines were in
contact with air and water lines by 8-S-85 chute and 9-S- 369
raise." The operator denonstrated a normal degree of good faith

by correcting the condition within the tine specified for
abat enment .

This condition was in violation of section 57.12-82 as
all eged. It was noted above that this standard requires
powerlines to be well separated or insulated fromwaterlines and
airlines. 1In this instance, an energized 110-volt powerline had
been suspended from al um num air and waterlines wth uninsul ated
tie wire. The powerline was 12- or 14-gauge wire and was
protected only by factory
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i nsul ati on. Because uninsulated tie wire had been used to
suspend the powerline, it was not sufficiently separated or
insulated fromthe lines to which it was attached.

It was not established on the record that negligence existed
on the part of the operator. The cable was in good condition
There were no splices or breaks in the insulation. The operator
may have believed that the powerline was adequately insul ated.
The inspector had concluded that Respondent was negligent because
violations of this sort had occurred at this mne on prior
occasions. The evidence of record, however, did not establish
that the operator knew or should have known of this particular
condi ti on.

It was probable that this condition would result in an
accident. Falling rock or a blow out of the powerline could have
caused energization of the air and waterlines. The cable was
| ocated in an active working area. The possibility also existed
that the powerline m ght be damaged by heavy equi pnent or by rock
thrown during blasting. Moreover, the section on which the cable
was | ocated was wet. If an accident were to occur, the injury
expected to result would be el ectrocution, serious burns, or
shock.

Citation No. 00366229 was issued on May 19, 1978. The
i nspector cited a violation of 57.11-51(a) and described the
rel evant condition or practice as follows: "A safe neans of
access was not provided in the secondary escape route between 900
| evel and 800 | evel because of |oose rock in the |adders and on
the I andi ngs." The operator denonstrated a normal degree of good
faith by correcting the condition within the tinme set by the
i nspector for abatenent.

The condition was in violation of section 57.11-51(a) as
all eged. This mandatory standard requires that escape routes
shal |l be inspected at regular intervals and nmaintained in a safe,
travel able condition. The |adder in question was situated in the
secondary escapeway. The inspector found that rock had
accunul ated on sone of the rungs of the escape |adder so as to
make a safe handhold or foothold difficult to obtain. The
accunul ati ons of rock on the |andings al so presented a slipping
or tripping hazard. Although he was unsure whether the rock had
fallen from above or was forced through boards on the sides of
t he escapeway, the inspector noted that no provision had been
made to prevent rock fromfalling from above

The operator was negligent in that it should have known of
the condition and taken steps to abate it. The escapeway was not
bei ng i nspected at regular intervals by supervisory personnel
I f such inspections had taken place, the condition would have
been observed.

The inspector testified that the occurrence of the event
agai nst whi ch section 57.11-51(a) is directed was probable. At
the tine the violation was noted by the inspector, four nmen were
wor ki ng on the
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900 | evel. Because the mine had a history of rel ease of hydrogen
sul fide gas, the inspector thought that there mght be a need to
evacuate the mners through the secondary escapeway. |If niners

were forced to use the secondary escapeway, it was probabl e that
an accident would occur. A fall could reasonably be expected to
result in injury ranging frombruises to fatalities.

Citation No. 00366230 was al so issued on May 19, 1978. The
i nspector cited a violation of 30 CFR 57.6-92 and descri bed the
rel evant condition or practice as follows: "Explosives beconi ng
deteriorated were in the day box on the 900 | evel." The operator
denonstrated a normal degree of good faith by destroying the
expl osives on the following day, within the tine set by the
i nspector for abatenent.

The condition was in violation of section 57.6-92 as
al | eged. The standard requires that danaged or deteriorated
expl osi ves shall be destroyed in a safe manner. The inspector
observed approximately 12 sticks of explosives in a day box on a
regul arl y-used haul ageway. The sticks of explosives were
becom ng "very nushy" and beads of oil had forned on the outer
surfaces. These expl osives had becone "danmaged or deteriorated”
wi thin the neani ng of the nandatory standard.

The operator was negligent in that it should have known of
the condition and taken steps to abate it. The condition of the
expl osi ves was visually obvious and they were situated in the day
box. The day box is intended to hold only a single day's usage
of explosives. It was the responsibility of supervisory
presonnel to inspect the explosives contained in this box and
make certain that they were used on a rotating basis.

The expl osives were a type with which the inspector was not
famliar. Despite the deterioration, they posed little danger
The inspector believed that the substance whi ch appeared to be
| eaki ng fromthe expl osives was nitroglycerine. |In fact, this
subst ance was a nonexplosive, liquid salt solution. It was
i nprobabl e that this condition would | ead to accident or injury.

ASSESSMENTS

In consideration of the findings of fact and concl usi ons of
law in this decision, based on the stipulations and evi dence of
record, the followi ng assessnents are appropri ate under the
criteria of section 110(i) of the Act:

Citation No. Penal ty
00366255 $ 60
00366218 50
00366228 70
00366229 80

00366230 100
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CORDER

The Respondent is ORDERED to pay the anpbunt of $360 within
30 days of the date of this decision

Forrest E. Stewart
Admi ni strative Law Judge

L
Footnote starts here

~Foot not e_one

1 On the face of the citation, the inspector referred to 30
CFR 57.9-72 as the mandatory standard violated. He testified
that he had done so inadvertently. The Ofice of Assessnent's
proposed assessnent and the petition for assessnent of civil
penalty correctly noted that 30 CFR 57.9-71 was the standard
al I egedly vi ol at ed.



